ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVWM TTEE
March 2, 2010
8:04 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representati ve Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Craig Johnson

OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative Scott Kawasaki
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG S)

Per sonnel Board

Dr. Keith J. Ham|lton - Sol dot na
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

HOUSE BI LL NO. 409

"An Act relating to state election canpaigns, the duties of the
Al aska Public Ofices Comm ssion, the reporting and disclosure
of expenditures and independent expenditures, the filing of
reports, and the identification of certain comrunications in
state el ection canpaigns; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 401

“"An Act relating to state election canpaigns, the duties of the
Al aska Public Ofices Comm ssion, the reporting and disclosure
of expenditures and independent expenditures, the filing of
reports, and the identification of certain comrunications in
state el ection canpaigns; and providing for an effective date."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 2, 2010



- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 409

SHORT TI TLE: CAMPAI GN EXPENDI TURES
SPONSOR(s): STATE AFFAI RS

02/ 26/ 10 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 26/ 10 (H) STA, JUD
03/ 02/ 10 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

DR KEI TH HAM LTON

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Personnel
Boar d.

M KE SI CA, Staff

Representati ve Bob Lynn

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 409 on behalf of the House
State Affairs Standing Committee, sponsor, which is chaired by
Representative Lynn.

JOHN PTACI N, Assistant Attorney General

Labor and State Affairs Section

G vil Division (Anchorage)

Departnent of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: D scussed a nenorandum from the attorney
general and answered questions during the hearing on HB 409.

PATTY WARE

Regul ati on of Lobbyi ng

Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion (APQOC)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
4009.

HOLLY ROBERSON HI LL, Executive Director

Al aska Public O fices Conm ssion (APQOC)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
4009.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 2, 2010



ALPHEUS BULLARD, Attorney at Law

Legi sl ative Legal Counci l

Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services

Legi sl ative Affairs Agency

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provi ded coments and answered questions
during the hearing on HB 409.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:04: 02 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmmittee
neeting to order at 8:04 a.m Represent ati ves Seaton, W] son,
Petersen, and Lynn were present at the <call to order.
Representative Gruenberg arrived as the neeting was in progress.

CONFI RVATI ON(S) :  PERSONNEL BOARD, DR. KEI TH J. HAM LTON

8:04: 35 AM

CHAI R LYNN brought before the commttee the appointnment of Dr.
Keith HamlIton to the Personnel Board. [ The commttee packet
cont ai ns biographical information on Dr. Ham | ton.]

8:05: 09 AM

DR. KEITH HAMLTON, testifying as appointee to the Personnel
Board, offered his background. He said he is an educator who
was involved with the Faith-Based and Comunity Initiatives
Counci | . He said he understands what serving on the Personnel
Board entails and thinks he would serve on the board as a fair
and unbi ased individual who does not necessarily "cone in wth
any political or governnent experience."

8: 06: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON remarked that Dr. Hamlton's resune is
i npressive, and he said he appreciates Dr. Hamlton's desire to
serve the state.

8: 06: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to advance the confirmation of Dr.
Keith Hamilton to the joint session of the House and Senate.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 2, 2010



There being no objection, the nomnation of Dr. Keith Ham |ton
to the Personnel Board was advanced.

HB 409- CAVPAI GN EXPENDI TURES

8:07:17 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced the next order of business was HOUSE BILL
NO. 409, "An Act relating to state election canpaigns, the
duties of the Alaska Public Ofices Comm ssion, the reporting
and disclosure of expenditures and independent expenditures, the
filing of reports, and the identification of certain
comuni cations in state el ection canpaigns; and providing for an
effective date."

CHAIR LYNN reviewed that there was a recent [U S.] Suprene Court
deci sion involving corporations being defined as a "person” and
maki ng i ndependent canpaign expenditures in support of or in
opposition to a candidate or initiative. He said the decision
has had repercussions throughout the political community and
affects the all people.

8:09:21 AM

CHAIR LYNN said the conmittee's purpose today is not to debate
the U S. Suprene Court deci sion. Chair Lynn said the committee

recently heard a bill he sponsored, which addresses the sane
i ssue; however, he said that bill would be held in order to work
with the conmittee sponsored HB 409. He said he thinks everyone
will acknowl edge the need to create sone "side bars" - sone
rules - before the end of this session. He stated that the
proposed bill is a bipartisan effort.

8:11:45 AM

MKE SICA  Staff, Representative Bob Lynn, Alaska State
Legi slature, presented HB 409 on behalf of the House State
Affairs Standing Conmittee, sponsor, which 1is chaired by
Representative Lynn. He stated that when the U. S. Suprene Court
deci sion was nade on January 21, 2010, all Al aska's prohibitions
on independent expenditures were likely made unconstitutional.
He said the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee has worked
quickly to address this issue, sending a letter to the governor
of Alaska by February 12, which outlined the commttee's

concerns. M. Sica reported that on Friday, February 19, the
attorney general issued a |legal analysis supporting "the kind of
things this bill is doing" related to disclosures and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 2, 2010



disclaimers and ensuring fair and credible elections while
upholding people's right to free speech. He expressed
appreciation for all those who have been involved with the
proposed | egi sl ati on.

8:13:43 AM

MR. SICA paraphrased the sectional analysis, which read as
fol |l ows:

Section 1. Anrends | anguage relating to t he
applicability of AS 15.13 (state election canpaigns)
to clarify that the chapter applies to al
contributions, expenditures, and conmunications nmade
for the purpose of influencing the outcone of an
el ection covered by the chapter.

Section 2. Requires t he Al aska Publ i c Ofices
Conmm ssi on ( APQCC) to make certain i nformation
available to the public within 24 hours after being
received by the comission and anends | anguage
relating to APOCs duties to clarify that the
comm ssion will assist all persons to conply with the
requi renents of AS 15. 13.

Section 3. Arends AS 15.13.040(d) to clarify that every
person making an expenditure nust report to the
comm ssion unless the person is exenpted from
reporting by another provision of the chapter.

Section 4. Adds new requirenments to the expenditure
report required under AS 15.13.040(d) and specifies
that (1) if the report is filed by a person who is not
an individual, it nust be certified by the person's
treasurer or fiscal officer, and (2) the report nmnust
be filed in accordance with AS 15.13.110(9).

Regarding Section 2, he directed attention to a conformng
| anguage change on page 2, line 4, wherein APOC would be
required to assist "all persons” rather than candi dates, groups,
and i ndi vi dual s.

Regarding Section 4, he directed attention to new |anguage
begi nning on page 3, line 5, which read:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 2, 2010



If the report is filed by a person that is not an
i ndividual, the report nust be certified as correct by
the treasurer or fiscal officer of the person.

MR. SICA offered his understanding that the intent of that

| anguage is to ensure accuracy. He noted that other new
| anguage in Section 4 includes requirenents, including: "the
nane, address, and nationality of each officer and director of
the person”, "principal occupation”, and "enployer of the

contributor".

MR SICA in response to Chair Lynn, explained the purpose of
the proposed requirenent to report nationality is "to capture
whet her the person behind these independent expenditures was a
foreign corporation.”

8:17: 06 AM

MR. SICA returned to the sectional analysis. He paraphrased
Sections 5 through 10, which read as foll ows:

Section 5. Anrends | anguage in AS 15. 13. 040( h) to
clarify t hat t he reporting requi renents of
AS 15. 13.040(d) do not apply to an expenditure nade by
certain individuals acting independently of any other
per son.

Section 6. Anends AS 15.13.040(p) to clarify that a
person who is required to disclose contributions
received by that person in an expenditure report under
AS 15.13.040(d) mnust report the true source of the
contributions as the "contributor."

Section 7.Provides that no person, other than an
i ndi vi dual exenpt from reporting under
AS 15.13.040(h), may make an expenditure unless the
source of the expenditure has been discl osed.

Section 8. Anends |anguage in AS 15.13.084 to clarify
that a person nay not make an expenditure anonynously
unless it is nmade (1) for certain comunications, (2)
in connection with a ballot proposition as that term
is defined by AS 15.13.065(c), and (3) by an
i ndi vi dual acting independently of any other person.

Section 9. Arends |anguage in AS 15.13.086 to conform
with the bill's repeal of AS 15.13.067.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 2, 2010



Section 10. Expands the comunication identification
requirenents of AS 15. 13. 090 to apply to
comuni cations nmade by all persons, and additionally
requires a person other than a candi date, individual,
or a political party to (1) identify the person's
principal officer, (2) include a statenent from that
of ficer approving the communication, (3) provide the
address of the person's principal place of business,
and (4) identify certain contributors to the person.

MR. SICA, regarding Section 10, said the "certain contributors”
woul d be the five |argest donors.

8:20: 13 AM

VR. SICA continued paraphrasing the sectional anal ysi s,
directing attention to Sections 11 through 16, which read as
fol |l ows:

Section 11. Adds a new subsection to AS 15.13.090
that does not permt a conmunication to be made by a
person ot her than a candidate, i ndi vi dual or
political party, unless the person's principal officer
has certified to APOC that the officer has reviewed
the communi cati on, and based on the officer's
knowl edge, the comunication is not defamatory and
does not contain defamatory statenents.

Section 12. Requires expenditure reports filed under AS
15.13.040(e) to be filed wthin three days of the
expenditure being nade, except for an expenditure that
exceeds $250 and that is made within nine days of an
el ection nust be reported to APOC within 24 hours of
t he expenditure bei ng made.

Section 13. Anends the |anguage of AS 15.13.111(a) to
oblige all persons who are required to report under AS
15.13 to preserve certain records for a period of six
years.

Section 14. Renoves |anguage from AS 15.13.135 that
permtted only individuals, gr oups, or nongr oup
entities to make independent expenditures in support
or in opposition to a candidate for public office.
Adds | anguage requiring all persons making certain
i ndependent expenditures to conply with AS 15.13. 090.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 2, 2010



Section 15. Repeal s AS 15. 13. 067, a provi si on
permtting only certain persons to make expenditures
in an election for public office and AS 15.13.140(a),
a provision that provided that AS 15.13 should not be
interpreted to prohibit a person from making
i ndependent expenditures in support or in opposition
to a ballot proposition or question. As the chapter
now reads, there is no anbiguity as to whether the
chapter prohibits persons from nmaking independent
expenditures relating to a ballot proposition or

guesti on.
Section 16. Gves the Act an imediate effective
dat e.

MR, SICA, regarding Section 15, offered his understanding that
registration before expenditure is already in AS 13.15.050;
therefore it is redundant in AS 15.13. 067.

8:23:28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to an article in
The New York Tines, entitled, "Anonynous Donation,” which
brings up the possibility of corporate contributions being
funnel ed through nonprofit organi zations. He questioned whet her
it would be constitutional for the legislature to prohibit this.

MR. SI CA responded that he has discussed this issue, but has not
had communication from Legislative Legal and Research Services
regarding it.

8:25: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN, regarding the issue of nationality,
of fered his understanding that even though a person who is not a
US citizen is not allowed to vote, under the proposed
| egislation, a foreign national would be able to influence
Al aska's el ections. He opined that that is not right, and he
said he does not think the people of Alaska would like that to
happen.

CHAI R LYNN responded that he would not want that to happen. He
said it is illegal for a foreign national to contribute to any
candi date, and he opined that it should also be illegal for
"that person representing the corporation to essentially do the
same thing, even though it's an independent expenditure." He

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 2, 2010



said the proposed requirenment to identify nationality is there
for the purpose of full disclosure. He stated his concern that
it should also be disclosed when a corporation is "an Al aska
subsidiary of a foreign nation."

8:27:41 AM

MR. SICA added that the legislature legally could prohibit not
just foreign corporations, but subsidiaries therein, and it my
wish to consider that in the future. He echoed Chair Lynn's
comment that the proposed requirenent to identify nationality is
for the purpose of full disclosure.

CHAIR LYNN said the idea is to give the public information by
which to know if they nmay have been influenced by foreign
persons.

8:28:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN noted that the disclosure showing the
name of the group or candidate who sponsored an election
advertisement shows at the bottom of the television screen in
smal |l print. Adding further names will make it difficult for
t he average person to be able to read. He asked if there is any
way to require the advertisenment sponsorship to be announced
audi bl y. He suggested that that would allow the public to
instantly recogni ze a foreign corporation nane.

CHAIR LYNN pointed out that many U.S. corporations have foreign
soundi ng nanes, because Anmerica is conprised of a nyriad of
ethnicities.

8:30: 39 AM

MR. SICA said the proposed requirenent to report nationality, to
whi ch Representative Petersen referred, is related to filing
reports. He then highlighted | anguage on page 5, lines [8-11],
whi ch read as foll ows:

Sec. 15.13.090. Identification of conmunication.
(a) Al comunications shall be clearly identified by
the words "paid for by" followed by the nane and
address of the person [CANDH DATE, GROUP, NONGROUP
ENTI TY, OR | NDI VI DUAL] paying for the conmunicati on.

CHAIR LYNN said he hopes the nedia would help in identifying the
sponsor of the [political] advertisenent.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- March 2, 2010



8:31:35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON regarding nationality, said Alaska is

currently relying on federal Ilaw, which prohibits foreign
nationals fromcontributing to a canpaign, "et cetera." He said
he is waiting on a response from Legi slative Legal and Research
Services as to whether federal |aw preenpts state |aw from
instituting "a mrror kind of [|anguage." If not, he suggested
that the committee adopt an anmendnent incorporating that

restriction into state | aw.
8:32:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG remarked that no law is nore effective
than the state's ability to enforce it. He said the conmmttee
is getting into an issue that involves legal "tracing," which he
expl ained is an expensive process of finding out where the noney
| eads. He questioned how nuch noney would be needed to enforce
t he | aw

8:33:25 AM
MR. SICA offered his understanding that the current fiscal note

is $131,000. He said he does not know how nuch additional nopney
woul d be needed to do tracing and cover investigations.

8:33:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON of fered hi s under st andi ng t hat
Representati ve Kawasaki was concerned about hidden funds. He
directed attention to | anguage on page 4, line 9, which read:

"contributor” nmeans the true source of the funds,
property, or services being contributed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed his hope that the comittee
woul d obtain a legal opinion as to the nmeaning of that |anguage
and what the penalties would be if soneone was shown to be
attenpting to hide the true source of funds.

8:34: 58 AM
REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON opined that the penalty for hiding
funds nust have an inpact. She talked about perception and

truth and taking a nessage out of context, and she enphasized
that the |legislature must punish those giving other than the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 2, 2010



facts. She said, "So, | think this goes a little further than
just financing ...."

CHAI R LYNN concurr ed.
8:36: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that meking a good case requires
right, renedy, and enforcenent. He nentioned the Pebble M ne
case and said having a penalty in place is extrenely inportant.
He relayed that AS 12.55.035 addresses how corporations are
puni shed. He said the statute has sonme |oopholes, but he
suggested that the conmttee consider its inplications. He said
corporations can influence legislation or the election of
candi dates not only by bribing people, but also by committing
various canpaign violations, and he reenphasized the inportance
of addressing "terrific potential |osses for the public" through
enacting "good renmedy statutes.”

CHAI R LYNN responded, "I like that."
8:38: 33 AM

MR. SICA cautioned that the intent of the legislation is not to
penal i ze people for "exercising their political speech that they
now have through the [U S.] Suprene Court decision.”

8:41: 06 AM

JOHN PTACI N, Assistant Attorney General, Labor and State Affairs
Section, Civil D vision (Anchorage), Departnent of Law, said he
would outline some points from a nmenorandum from the attorney
general, dated 2/19/10 [included in the commttee packet]. As
shown in the summary of the nmenorandum M. Ptacin said that
under Citizens United v. Federal Election Commission ("Ctizens
United"), Al aska may not prohibit political speech altogether in
candidate elections; therefore, AS 15.13.067 and AS 15.13.135
are likely wunconstitutional. In response to Representative
W son, he explained that the aforenentioned statutes have been
called into question "to the extent that they prohibit
i ndependent expenditures attenuated to free speech and candi date
el ections."

MR. PTASIN said given the current "landscape of the law " the
departnent al so considered how current disclosure and di scl ai ner
|aw applies to corporations and |abor unions. He said [AS
15.13.040], as currently witten, requires corporations and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 2, 2010



| abor unions making independent expenditures in candidate
el ections to disclose that speech within 10 days of nmaking it.
Regarding disclainmer law, M. Ptasin said AS 15.13.084 does
apply; the corporation or |abor unions cannot nmake that speech
anonynously. He said that in the nenorandum it was noted that
AS 15.13.084 could lead to sone confusion where a corporation or
| abor wunion could force the issue and nake a political speech
expendi ture. He said a question he thinks the commttee and
many proposed bills are trying to address is what it neans to
make speech not be anonynous.

MR. PTASI N conti nued as foll ows:

W did point out that there is this issue with true
source ... of funds. Arguably there's a gap in the
| aw, because a corporation can make an expenditure
fromits own treasury. But the real question, and |
think that what a ot of the legislators this session
are trying to understand is: How do we follow the
noney from person to person down into the actual act
of speech? And | think that's what these bills are
trying to address.

MR. PTASIN, regarding foreign corporations, said the nenorandum
points out that federal |aw does not allow foreign nationals or
foreign associations to make expenditures in state candidate
el ecti ons. He relayed that the U S. Suprene Court decision
resulting fromthe Citizens United case did not invalidate that
federal law, but it also did not rule whether or not there is a
conpel I'ing government interest in upholding that |aw.

8:44: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked M. Ptasin if he is saying there
seens to be gray area when it cones to whether foreign entities,
governnents, or individuals wll be allowed to try to influence
el ections; therefore, if the state specifically excluded those
entities from Al aska el ection law, that may be unconstitutional.

MR. PTASIN responded that Representative Petersen's question is
difficult to answer, because [the U S. Suprene Court] "spent
about two sentences addressing the issue of [2 U S.C. § 44le]."
He stated, "All they said is they don't have to address it in
this case, and they don't rule whether there is a conpelling
government interest in that l|law as opposed to restricting
expenditures by United States corporations and |abor unions in
this context then." He said it is difficult to predict whether

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 2, 2010



or not there will be a conpelling government interest in that
ar ea.

8:45: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the Ofice of the Attorney
Ceneral believes that there is federal preenption in that
restriction or it would be possible for Al aska to enact state
law mrroring the restrictions in federal |aw

VR. PTASIN answered that in other st at es’ expendi ture
restriction laws, which are now |ikely unconstitutional, the
definitions of corporations include "any corporation foreign or
donestic." He said he cannot find anything to show that that
distinction would "represent a conpelling governnment interest at
this point." He stated, "I think it nmerits a lot nore work to

determ ne whether there is preenption in that area and to kind
of flush out that idea."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked what the state's recourse would be
if it relies on federal law and a foreign national spends nobney
in state el ection. He asked if there needs to be state statute
addressing this issue.

MR.  PTASIN responded that Alaska's <current |aw does not
contenpl at e di stingui shing between foreign national corporations
and associations and U.S. corporations, because "we" used to
have an outright ban on all expenditure. The attorney genera
menor andum points out that there is no state law on this issue
he sai d. M. Ptasin offered his perspective that he is al nost
certain he could not bring a federal elections canpaign case in
front of APCC, the issue could not be litigated in state courts.

8:48: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN said even though Al aska mght not be
able to restrict a foreign corporation or foreign governnment
from getting involved in an election, the state would not be
restricted in how it requires disclosure.

MR. PTASI N responded as foll ows:

Laws which burden political speech are always subject
to scrutiny, and the government nust always show a
conpelling governnment interest in passing that |aw,
and ... [its] interest needs to be narrowy tail ored.
Wth respect to foreign nationals, ... to the extent

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- March 2, 2010



there is a conpelling government interest, | think
that's an issue that has to be thought about. :
G ven that standard, when you're trying to burden free
speech, there has to be a conpelling governnent
interest to do any kind of disclosure or disclainmner
I aw.

8:49:30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN concl uded then that Al aska would have to
require the same disclosure by everyone as a matter of fairness
and "to pass scrutiny."

MR. PTASIN replied that that is nore of an equal protection
i ssue. He said, "Wwen you talk about this particular set of
| aws, you just have to pass strict scrutiny, and the governnent
has to show a conpelling governnment interest for requiring that

type of disclosure.” He said he thinks there is roomto treat
certain groups one way versus another, and he said "these |aws
al ready contenplate that.” For exanple, he said individuals

have different types of filing requirenents than [corporations].

8:50: 13 AM

CHAI R LYNN concl uded that the proposed |egislation would "buy us
sorme tine" by "disclosing disclosing." He suggested that future
| egi sl ati on may pass sonme restrictions that woul d pass scrutiny.

MR. PTASI N responded as foll ows:

The new disclosure and disclainer |andscape

certainly builds on what's already in place. And
again, disclosure and disclainmer laws are subject to
strict scrutiny. And these laws are ... subject to

chall enge from groups or from corporations or |abor
uni ons - whoever you're applying the burden to, but at
this point, it's passed into law ....

8:51:18 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Ptasin to confirm that the
remedies available to APOC are contained in AS 15.13.390, and

that they involve only civil penalties.

MR. PTASIN responded that there are crimnal sanctions for
certain violations in another section of statute.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 2, 2010



8:51: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG asked M. Ptasin if he is aware of
whet her Al aska allows APOC to seek a court order or any type of
injunctive relief if there is an egregious case, and whether he
is aware of "any other types of renedies that are on the books
in any other jurisdiction.™

8:53: 02 AM
MR PTASI N answer ed no.
8:53:41 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON cited two sentences from the sumary of
t he af orementi oned nenorandum which read as foll ows:

Al aska's laws continue to regulate corporate and | abor
uni on politi cal speech  through di scl ai nmer and
di scl osure requirenents. However, sone disclai ner and
di sclosure laws that provide specific standards for
reporting and identification of expenditures do not
currently apply to corporations and | abor unions.

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON concl uded as fol |l ows:

So, in that node, we should be able to say we are just
covering those ... in areas ... that ... weren't
covered before and feel confortabl e doing that.

8:54: 42 AM

MR. PTASIN said there certainly has been discussion as to how
[AS 15.13.090 and AS 15.13.135] can apply to corporations and
| abor unions. He indicated that proposed bills currently before
the legislature contenplate "even further discussion fromthat,"
based on the [proposed] changes to [AS 15.13.040 (d) and (e)].

8: 55: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that M. Ptasin had nentioned two
statutes that he believed susceptible to constitutional
chal l enge: AS 15.13.067, which would be repealed by HB 409; and
AS 15.13.135. He asked M. Ptasin if he is confortable that the
changes proposed in HB 409 would "take care of that situation,”
or if he would recomrend further changes be made.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- March 2, 2010



8:56:19 AM

MR. PTASIN responded, "What vyou' ve done to [AS 15.13.135] is
just not made any kind of restriction language in there, so it

does open it to the ... full panoply of entities and people in
groups who can nake expenditures. So, | don't see anything in
the way that you've done that to ... raise an issue.”

8:57.02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, regarding "true source of funds", on page
4, line 9, asked M. Ptasin if this l|language would give the
departnment "anple cause to take a conplaint through APOC or
t hrough the courts.”

MR. PTASIN responded that trying to "follow the noney" can be an
arduous process. He indicated that the proposed |egislation
would require "the one nmaking the nmessage to tell you who the
source of funds is." He stated, "If there's an inplication that
there's one corporation giving to another corporation, giving to
anot her corporation, and funneling it all the way to the
messagi ng, conceivably under that |anguage, we could take the
case and try to relate it all the way back to the true source of
funds, but 1'd |like to take a harder | ook at that."

8:59:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to | anguage on page 3, beginning
on line 5, which read as foll ows:

If the report is filed by a person that is not an
i ndividual, the report nust be certified as correct by
the treasurer or fiscal officer of the person.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Ptasin if that |anguage woul d be
sufficient to "attach liability to an individual if that is
shown to be willfully done.™

MR. PTASIN pointed out that HB 409 further proposes that the
report nust contain, for all contributions to the person that
exceed $100, ["the date of the «contribution and anount
contributed by each contributor"]. He said that proposed
requi renent would give the departnment the precursor to determ ne
whet her or not there was a violation. Furthernore, he said the
proposed requirenent for six years of record keeping would give
the departnment "broad subpoena power to ask the questions that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- March 2, 2010



need to be asked if an allegation's nade." He said he would
like to take a second | ook at "that |anguage."”

9:02: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked then if it would be possible
legally to find sonmeone guilty if the intent to hide true
identity could be proved.

MR. PTASIN responded that his experience has shown that proving
intent can be difficult; however, the stronger the disclosure
and disclaimer laws are, the better the chance is of finding
"certain things."

9:04: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to AS 15.13.390
(f)(1), which read as foll ows:

(f) A party who has filed a civil action under AS 15.13. 380
(1) is not entitled to trial by jury on the civi
action;

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG said he would like to know if it is
constitutional to not allow a juried trial.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG questi oned whether the aforenentioned
| anguage on page 3, beginning on line 5, should be anended to
say that the report should be certified "under penalty of

perjury".

MR. PTASIN responded that any "burdening speech” would have to
"survive strict scrutiny, narrow tailoring, [and have]
conpel ling governnment interest."” He said he thinks there is
conpel l'ing governnment interest to keep individuals fromlying to
t he public. He indicated that the issues of narrow tailoring
and "whether perjury is the lever" have not been vetted at this
poi nt .

9: 05: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d "t he conspi racy statute"
apparently applies only to serious crines. He explained, "I'm
wondering if the stuff we're tal king about here would be covered
by conspiracy, because that would seemto nme to be a relatively
easy way of prosecuting a violator.” He asked M. Ptasin if he
woul d consi der that idea.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 2, 2010



9:07:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ~ SEATON clarified t hat t he conmittee is
anticipating two comuni cati ons: one regarding the nationality
prohi bition and whether the state could enact such a law, and
the other one regarding the true source of funds, which is
related to the conspiracy issue.

9:08: 44 AM

MR. PTASIN, in response to Representative Guenberg, said that
as the attorney who works on APCC issues, he is ready to enforce

any |laws that are passed. In response to a followup question
he said the Departnment of Law and APOC work closely on
i nvestigations. He said APOC receives conplaints and the

departnent is relied upon to ensure that investigations nobve
forward

9:11: 21 AM

MR.  PTASIN, in response to Representative Seaton's fornmer
sutmary of the questions that would be answered for the
committee, offered his understanding that the Departnent of Law
is going to consider certification under penalty and conspiracy
i ssues, and Legislative Legal and Research Services is going to
| ook at the nationality preenption issue.

9:11: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that the question for the
attorney general is related to the federal |aw regarding foreign
nationals and "how that would flow into this new area where we

could have foreign directors of a corporation” - how the
departnment "would be able to prosecute that." He said that is a
different questions from that which he is asking Legislative
Legal and Research Services to answer.

MR.  PTASIN, in response to a question from Representative
Seaton, said he can enforce state |aws, but needs to think about
what the state's role would be regarding the |anguage in HB 409
t hat addresses foreign nationals.

9:13:48 AM

PATTY WARE, Regulation of Lobbying, Alaska Public Ofices
Comm ssion (APQCCO), reported that four out of five APOC

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 2, 2010



commi ssioners net wth legislators in Juneau |ast week and,
while APOC does not take an official position on |egislation,
the comm ssioners made it clear that this is an urgent matter
for which legislation nust be passed this session wth an
imedi ate effective date. She thanked the commttee for
i ntroduci ng HB 4009.

9:14: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to the aforenentioned
| anguage, "contributions to the person that exceed $100", on
page 3, line 20, and he asked if that is the current limt. He
said he does not think the intent of the commttee is to change
t he standard.

M5. WARE offered her understanding that the anount in current
statute is $100. She deferred to the executive director of APOC
for confirmation.

9: 15: 36 AM

HOLLY ROBERSON HILL, Executive Director, Al aska Public Ofices
Comm ssion (APOC), said one of her staff has told her that is
correct. Regarding a previous comment by M. Ptasin, she cited
AS 15.13.380(f), which read as foll ows:

(f) If the conplaint involves a challenge to the
constitutionality of a statute or regul ati on,
necessary wtnesses that are not subject to the
commi ssion's subpoena authority, or other issues
outside the comm ssion's authority, the comm ssion may
request the attorney general to file a conplaint in
superior court alleging a violation of this chapter.
The commi ssion nmay request the attorney general to
file a conplaint in superior court to renmedy the
viol ation of a comm ssion order.

M5. HLL then cited Regulation 2AAC 50.476, which she said
allows APOC to refer matters to the attorney general. She
stated that AS 15.56.012, AS 15.56.014, and AS 15.56.016 involve
canpai gn m sconduct which is crimnal in nature. She said, "So,
t he nechani sm would be a referral by the commission to the AG s
office for nore action taken against particular matters.” In
response to Representative Seaton, she confirnmed that AS
15.13.040(a)(2)(B)(ii) shows $100 in the aggregate.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 2, 2010



9:17:37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG of fered a hypot hetical exanple in which
one corporation funnels noney through a nonprofit corporation.
He asked, "Wuld there be any possible problem with asserting
o in personam jurisdiction in a case like that, and, if so,
should we consider a statutory anendnent to allow you to have
jurisdiction in that case to the maxi num extent constitutionally
per m ssi bl e?"

MR. PTASIN responded that under 074(f), a corporation couldn't
give to a group or a nongroup entity.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would like an opinion fromthe
attorney general regarding whether that would be constitutiona
after the Ctizens United case. He said his question regarding
jurisdiction still stands.

MR. PTASIN explained that 074(f) is a contribution |law, which
does not allow certain corporations, |abor unions, and those
types of entities, to make a contribution to a group or a
nongroup entity or a candi date.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he understands what M. Ptasin has

said, but he wants to know if, in view of the Federal Election
Conmmi ssion v. WMassachusetts Ctizens For Life case and Ctizens
United, 074(f) is still constitutional.

MR. PTASI N expl ai ned as foll ows:

074(f) is a contribution law, and ... GCtizens United
is an expenditure case, so, | don't see any reason
why 074 is on any different grounds than it was prior.

9:20: 56 AM

ALPHEUS BULLARD, Attorney at Law, Legislative Legal Council,
Legislative Legal and Research Services, Legislative Affairs
Agency, related that currently foreign nationals, under 2 USC
441 E, are prohibited from direct or indirect involvenent in a
federal, state, or local elections of candidates, ballot
initiatives, or questions. Currently under federal |aw, those
entities are not allowed to use a foreign expenditure to
i nfluence an el ection.

CHAIR LYNN said he assunes a board of directors nmay cast a vote
related to the support or opposition to a candidate or issue

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 2, 2010



and he questioned whether a foreign national serving on that
board woul d be participating in an el ection when casting a vote.

MR. BULLARD answered as foll ows:

It would be a fact-intensive analysis as to where the
decision was made and how it was nade and who nade
t hat deci sion. The Anmerican subsidy could only use
that subsidy's funds from their Anerican genera
treasury to fund any sort of independent expenditure
in a state election. They wouldn't be able to use the
foreign parents' funds, et cetera.

MR. BULLARD, in response to a followup question from Chair
Lynn, stated his belief that under federal law, it would be
prohibited for a foreign national to be at the root of a
[ board' s] deci sion.

CHAIR LYNN asked how it is possible to determine who was the
determ ning influence in a closed board neeting.

MR. BULLARD sai d he does not have an answer for that question.
9:24:49 AM

MR. BULLARD, regarding conduit contributions and true source
| anguage, noted that there is a 2001 attorney general's opinion
interpreting the true source |anguage found in AS 15.13.040.
The opinion is that true source, in that context, neans the
ultimte source of the contribution. He continued as foll ows:

| believe the issue is nore of a sort of "boots-on-

t he-ground” investigatory issue than it is a |egal
i Ssue. True source is true source; | don't believe
it's anmbiguous. It's not noney from the general fund;

it's where that noney cane from before it was in that
organi zation's general fund [that] would be its true
sour ce.

MR. BULLARD said he does not know how much there is that can be
done in statute or how desirable it would be to attenpt to
"isolate that notion of true source" in statute.

9: 25: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "So, it's a factual question?”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 2, 2010



VR. BULLARD offered his understanding that Representative
Gruenberg was referring to the issue of true source, and to that
he answered yes.

9: 26: 18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked if the State of Alaska would be
allowed to require that the true source of funds be disclosed as
a part of the advertisenent.

MR. BULLARD responded that although he can inagine squabbles
occurring regarding true source in that context, he does not
know what the state's interest is and whether it would be a
conpel ling interest.

9:27: 44 AM
CHAIR LYNN asked if it wuld be possible to require a

corporation to disclose when it is a subsidiary of a foreign
cor poration.

MR. BULLARD answered that |Ilike prohibiting or Ilimting an
expenditure, a disclosure provision is a burden on speech and
while the jurisprudence is not crystal clear, it needs to be

narromy tailored to a conpelling state interest. He said he is
not certain whether such a requirenent would be interpreted by a
court to satisfy conpelling state interest. He added, "It's
possi ble.™

CHAIR LYNN explained he was thinking that, at |east, a
disclosure could be mnmde at the bottom of a television
advertisenent or witten advertisenment, or at the end of a radio
announcenent .

MR. BULLARD responded that there are possible constitutional
argunents that that would offend equal protection of First
Amendrent rights of association and argunents regardi ng whet her
such a requirenent would be justified by a conpelling state
need. He said he does not know the answer to that question.

9:29:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to Section 11, on page
6, lines 4-9, which read as foll ows:

Sec. 11. AS 15.13.090 is anended by adding a new
subsection to read:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 2, 2010



(c) A person other than a candidate,
i ndi vi dual or political party my not nake a
communi cation under (a) of this section unless the
person's principal officer has certified to the
comm ssion in witing that the officer has reviewd
the conmmuni cati on, and, based on the officer's
knowl edge, the comunication is not defamatory and
does not contain any defamatory statements.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said there has been discussion regarding
whether it would be better to have a chief executive or board of
di rectors, r at her than the principal of ficer, do the
certification. He asked M. Bullard if there is a |legal reason
why the commttee should choose one over the other, or whether
this is a policy call.

9:31:14 AM

MR. BULLARD responded that he has not given this provision the
| egal analysis it deserves; therefore, he is not certain how the
provi sion would work. He said the only anal ogous provisions
with which he is famliar are within the federal Sarbanes-Oxley
Act [15 USC 7241 section 302 and 18 USC 1350 section 906], which
requires a chief financial officer of various |arge corporations
to certify the disclosures that they sign off on in an attenpt
to bring accountability to a personal |evel. He said he does
not know what the litigation surrounding those has been or how
anal ogous that is to the provision here in HB 409.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON requested a |egal opinion. He said the
chief area of <concern for him is that Ilimted liability
conpani es (LLCs), corporations, and unions have nore rights and
protection than individuals nmaki ng that sane comruni cati on.

CHAI R LYNN sai d he shares Representative Seaton's concern
9: 35: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG nentioned two  ways of provi ng
defamation, related to knowing a statement is defamatory and
reckl ess disregard of the truth. He said they are found in New
York Tinmes v. Sullivan. He asked M. Bullard if the |anguage in
Section 11 could be expanded with a conceptual anendnent, which
may include the follow ng |anguage: "based on the officer's
know edge" or "in reckless disregard of the truth".

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- March 2, 2010



MR. BULLARD said that |anguage could be included; however, since
the legal test for legal defamation under New York Tines v.

Sullivan "has that on board," he said it is not clear that the
anmendnent woul d be necessary.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expl ained that he is concerned about

clarity. He remarked that it is possible that sonmething said
can be untrue, w thout being defamatory. He asked if it would
be constitutional to expand the bill [Ianguage to include not

only defamatory statenments, but also "serious untruths" that may
be politically injurious or affect an el ection.

MR. BULLARD said he is unsure.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG indicated that he would talk further
with M. Bullard at a later date. He said he wanted to flag the
i Ssue.

9:38: 54 AM
REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN indicated that he would Iike feedback
from M. Bullard regarding an anendnent in which he held

i nt erest.

The commttee took an at-ease from 9:40: 22 AMto 9:41:49 AM

9:41: 52 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony.

9:43: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Anendnent 1, |abeled 26-
LS1495\R 1, Bullard, 3/1/10, which read as foll ows:

Page 2, line 27:

Delete "not less than 24 hours after the report
is filed"

Insert "within 24 hours after the filing of the
report”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ect ed for di scussi on purposes.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expl ained that Anmendnent 1 would change
the language to that which better neets the intent of the
comittee. In response to Representative G uenberg, he offered

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 2, 2010



hi s understanding that as soon as reports come in to APCC, they
are available to the public; therefore, APOC would be able to
conply with Anmendnent 1.

9:46: 41 AM

M5. HILL confirmed that Representative Seaton is correct that
anything that "comes through the door" is available to the
publi c. She noted that currently those itens being filed by
Excel spreadsheet nmay need adjusting before printing for the
public, unless APOC is able to sinply e-mail that information to
a person. She stated, "Changing it to "within 24 hours' - as
long as that is not presuned to be electronic filing - that's
acceptable to APCC. "

9:47: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG renoved his objection. There being no
further objection, Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

9:47:48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Anendnent 2, |abeled, 26-
LS1495\R 2, Bullard, 3/1/10, which read as foll ows:

Page 2, line 26, follow ng "public":
Insert "on the conmission's |Internet website"

Page 2, line 27:
Delete "not |l ess than 24 hours"
Insert "within three days"

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ected for di scussion purposes.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in response to Chair Lynn, offered his
under standing that "three days" neans three consecutive days.

9:49: 00 AM

M5. HILL responded that currently APOC does not have the ability
to post within 3 days. In response to Chair Lynn, she relayed
that the timng is closely tied to electronic filing. She

explained that APOC s electronic filing system is a database
from the md "'90s and slows down wth nore than one user;
therefore, the nore staff applied to the problem the slower the
syst em becones.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 25- March 2, 2010



9:49: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON opined that it 1is incunbent upon the
| egislature to nodernize the nethod of reporting to the public;
however, he acknow edged that APOC currently does not have the
means to carry out Amendnent 2.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON wi t hdr ew Anendnent 2.
9:50: 35 AM

M5. HILL, in response to Representative G uenberg, said APOC has
a $600,000 capital inprovenent project (CIP) request in the
fiscal year 2011 (FY 11) budget for the purpose of continuing
the comm ssion's filing project called, "lInsight.” She said the
first phase of that filing was the |obbyist nodule, which is up
and running, but not wthout glitches. The CIP for FY 10 w |
correct those glitches and provide APOC with interim solutions
that can assist wth posting data. It wll not be as
"searchabl e" as the Oxford database, she remarked, but will be a
met hod by which to l|oad data nore efficiently. Ms. Hill said
the Insight filing programis the process that was envisioned by
the legislature, but APOC does not have the funding to "engage
in a second task order." In response to a followup question,
she expressed her personal preference to not have a delayed
effective date.

9:53: 00 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in response to Chair Lynn, said as soon
as the legislature and the admnistration acquire a system that

wor ks, he is certain that APOC will be using it.

CHAIR LYNN stated that w thout objection, Anendnent 2 was
wi t hdr awn.

9:53: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Anmendnent 3, |abeled 26-LS
1495\ R 3, Bullard, 3/1/10, which read as foll ows:

Page 6, line 12:
Del ete "three days”
I nsert "24 hours"

Page 6, lines 12 - 16:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 2, 2010



Delete "An expenditure report filed under this
subsection nust include any expenditure not yet
reported that was made before the filing of the
report. However, an expenditure that exceeds $250 and
that is made within nine days of an election shall be
reported to the commssion not later than 24 hours
after the expenditure is nade."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ect ed for di scussion purposes.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said Anendnent 3 addresses the tine in
whi ch an independent expenditure report nust be filed. In
response to Chair Lynn, he explained that this report is that
which nmust be turned in by the entity naking the independent
expenditure; it does not relate to APOC s timng in making
i nformation public.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he has no problem with the first
part of the anmendnent, but questioned the reason for deleting
t he | anguage [from page 6, lines 12-16].

9: 56: 05 AM

MR. BULLARD, at the request of Representative Seaton, explained
as foll ows:

The reason that that |anguage appears in the bill and
not the anendnent s [that] wth the three-day
provision, ... you want things in the last nine days
to be reported - <certain expenditures - wthin 24
hours. And there was also the concern that an
expenditure that was nade on the tenth day before the
el ection could be reported within three days, but an
expenditure within nine days would have to be reported
wi thin 24 hours. So, it's possible that for two days
certain expenditures would drop out. Once all the
expenditure reports required under [AS] 15.13.040(e)
must be filed within 24 hours, the rest of that is
arguabl y superfl uous.

9:57: 28 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG npoved to divide Anmendnent 3 into
Anrendment 3a and Anendnent 3b. He said Anendnent 3a would

include the first [three lines] of Amendnent 3, while Amendnent
3b would include [the last 5 |ines].

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 2, 2010



9:57:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Anendnent 3a, which read as
fol | ows:

Page 6, line 12:
Del ete "three days”
I nsert "24 hours"
There being no objection, Arendnent 3a was adopt ed.
CHAI R LYNN announced that Anendnent 3b was tabl ed.
9:58: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Anmendnment 4, |abeled 26-
LS1495\R 7, Bullard, 3/1/10, which read as foll ows:

Page 2, line 31, followng "an":
| nsert "independent™

Page 6, line 11, follow ng "An":
| nsert "independent™

Page 6, line 12, follow ng "An":
| nsert "independent™

Page 6, line 14, follow ng "an":
| nsert "independent™

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said Anmendnent 4 relates to expenditure
reports.

There being no objection, Arendnent 4 was adopt ed.

10: 00: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON requested that the commttee get a
commttee substitute to incorporate the anendnents that were
adopt ed.

[ HB 409 was hel d over. ]

10: 01: 39 AM

ADJ OURNVENT

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 2, 2010



There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 10:02
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 29- March 2, 2010



